



Council of the
European Union

Brussels, 5 September 2017
(OR. en, it)

11872/17

INST 331
CMPT 13

COVER NOTE

From:	General Secretariat of the Council
To:	Delegations
Subject:	Partial renewal of Members of the Court of Auditors (2018) - IT nominee

Delegations will find attached a translation of a letter dated 24 July 2017 from Mr Maurizio MASSARI, Permanent Representative of Italy to the European Union, addressed to Mr Jeppe TRANHOLM-MIKKELSEN, Secretary-General of the Council of the European Union.

Encl.: IM 08017 2017

Permanent Representation of Italy
to the European Union
Brussels

Brussels, 24 July 2017
Ref. 6857

Dear Secretary-General,

In accordance with Article 286(2) TFEU, I am pleased to inform you that the Italian Government proposes renewing the candidacy of Dr Pietro Russo for the position of Member of the Court of Auditors of the European Union for the next term of office following the end of the current term.

I enclose herewith the candidate's curriculum vitae and personal data, as requested in your note of 25 April 2017.

A copy of this letter and its enclosures has been sent by email to the following address (nominations@consilium.europa.eu).

Yours faithfully,

Maurizio Massari

Jeppe Tranholm-Mikkelsen
Secretary-General
of the Council of the European Union
Council of the European Union
BRUSSELS

Pietro Russo

born in Syracuse (Italy) on 10 February 1952

OMISSIS
Mobile phone: OMISSIS
OMISSIS

12, rue Alcide de Gasperi
L-1615 Luxembourg
Mobile phone: +352 621 55 23 74
pietro.russo@eca.europa.eu

Education

- 1977 Qualified to practise law
- 1975 Degree in law from the University of Catania
(110/110 with distinction)
- 1970 School-leaving examination in classical studies (full marks)

Employment

From 1 March 2012

Member of the European Court of Auditors, representing Italy: Member of Chamber IV – responsible for Revenue, Research and Internal Policies, and Institutions and Bodies of the EU – Reporting Member for EU agencies and, subsequently, Revenue. From 2016, Member of Chamber V – responsible for financing and administering the Union – Reporting Member for EU administrative expenditure. Part of the delegation from the European Court of Auditors which paid an official visit to the Supreme Audit Institution of Poland in Warsaw in 2015, including, inter alia, meetings with the President of the Republic and the Speaker of the Parliament.

2009-2012 Member, representing Italy, of the International Board of Auditors for NATO (IBAN).

From 2006 until placed on secondment:

Magistrate delegated to carry out inspections at the Italian Institute of Germanic Studies in Rome.

- 2004-2009 Seconded member, and full-time member from 2006, of the Joint Sections, in their audit capacity:
- General and special rapporteur for the Report to Parliament: public procurement activities, Ministry of Productive Activity and Communications, Ministry of Economic Development and Ministry of Justice.
- Member of the Joint Sections, in an advisory capacity:
- Rapporteur on the draft decree of the President of the Republic on the Regulation for the administration and accounts of defence bodies.
- 2003 Served in the Central section for management audit of public administration at the Italian Court of Auditors (rapporteur for various special reports on, inter alia, the activities of the Ministry of Defence and the Ministry of Labour and Social Policy).
- From 2003: Deputy Magistrate responsible for auditing at the Italian National Institute of Statistics (ISTAT) under Article 12 of Law No 259/1958.
- 1993-2003 Head of the private office of the Italian member of the European Court of Auditors, with duties in the area of auditing the Regional Development Fund, the Agricultural Guidance and Guarantee Fund and Community aid to developing countries (implemented through the European Development Fund).
- 1991-1992 National expert at the European Court of Auditors in the office charged with auditing the European Regional Development Fund.
- 1985 Magistrate of the Court of Auditors serving in the Public Prosecutor's Office of Palermo Court of Auditors (Deputy Public Prosecutor duties) as *Referendario* (junior magistrate), *Primo Referendario* (higher-ranking judge, 1987) (Vice Public Prosecutor duties), *Consigliere* (senior judge, 1989) and *Presidente di sezione* (president of the chamber, 2014).
- 1977-1985 Served as ordinary magistrate at the Verona District Court and the Court of Verona and Catania (as magistrate (*pretore*) and judge).

Posts held at national level

- Member of the Committee for the assessment of investment and support for the planning and management of environmental measures at the Ministry of the Environment.

- Member of the Interministerial Committee for the examination of applications for compensation and contributions with regard to the losses suffered by Italian citizens abroad.
- Expert working for the High Commissioner for combating and preventing corruption and other forms of offence in public administration.
- Adviser to the Chair of the European Union Policies committee of the Senate of the Republic.
- Member of the Scientific Committee of the Permanent Observatory on Organised Crime (OPCO).

Posts held at international level

- From 1996 to 2012, member of the Board of Appeal of the Community Plant Variety Office based in Angers.
- National expert in GRECO (Group of States against corruption) at the Council of Europe.
- From 2005 to 2008, Italian Member (elected chairman from 30 June 2006) of the College of Auditors of the European Union military operations financing mechanism ('Athena').
- From 2008 to 2011, Italian Member (elected chairman from 30 June 2010) of the College of Auditors of the European Defence Agency (EDA).

Academic and scientific activities

- 1989: Member, in the capacity of *Cultore della materia* (subject expert), of the examination board for industrial law at the Faculty of Economics and Commerce of the University of Palermo.
- 1991: Research in comparative environmental law at the Centre of European Law and Politics of the University of Bremen, at the invitation of Professor G. Winter.
- 1992: Lecture entitled '*La Corte dei Conti: una nuova Istituzione comunitaria*' at the Faculty of Political Science of the University of Catania as part of the course on '*La Politica della Comunità Europea*'.

- From 1995, member of the Luxembourg *Association d'Etudes et Recherches pénales européennes*.
- 1996: Visiting lecturer at the Faculty of Political Science of the University of Catania; lecture series on *'La Corte dei Conti nello sviluppo istituzionale dell'Unione Europea'*.
- 1997 (September): Speaker at an international seminar on *'La Experiencia de los Organos de Control de las Comunidades Europeas como aporte a la consolidación del MERCOSUR'* held in Buenos Aires, at the invitation of the General Audit Office of Argentina.
- Speaker at a seminar on *'La protection pénale des intérêts financiers de l'Union européenne'*, Instituto europeo de España, San Sebastián, 1997.
- 1999 (November) and 2000 (January/February and May): talks on EU funding and structural fund rules, auditing in EU law, and legal remedies under the EU system, for courses on EU law organised by the Presidency Council of the Italian Court of Auditors as part of the *'Action Robert Schuman'*, held in Rome and in Milan.
- Speaker at the *'Symposium on European Cooperation in Justice and in the Judiciary'*, Pisa, 2000.
- 2000: Talk on *'L'esigenza del contraddittorio nel procedimento di controllo della Corte dei Conti Europea'* at the conference on *'Le funzioni di garanzia della finanza pubblica tra il rispetto delle autonomie e i principi del giusto processo'*, organised by the Italian Court of Auditors' Sections for the Region of Sicily, held in Palermo.
- 2000: Lecture series on the audit activities of the European Court of Auditors as part of a course organised at the instigation of the Italian Court of Auditors' Audit Section for the Region of Sicily in the context of the *'PASS'* project for training public officials, funded by the EU (Palermo).
- 2002: Talk on *'La certificazione dei conti pubblici in Italia e in Europa: raffronti comparativi'* at a conference on *'La certificazione dei conti pubblici in Italia e in Europa: Tradizione e Prospettive evolutive'*, held at the central office of the Italian Court of Auditors.
- 2002: Talk: *'Il sistema di controllo della Corte dei Conti Europea nel quadro dei Fondi Strutturali'* at a seminar on *'Funzioni di gestione, valutazione e controllo dei Fondi Strutturali'* held in Brussels at the representation office of the regions of Abruzzo, Lazio, Marche, Tuscany and Umbria.

- 2004 and 2005: Lectures on managing the EU budget and the work of the European Court of Auditors, as part of the Master's Degree in European Studies at the 'Alcide de Gasperi' Institute of European Studies in Rome.
- 2006: Talk on '*La certificazione del bilancio dello Stato: La prospettiva italiana nel contesto europeo*' at the central office of the Italian Court of Auditors in Rome, at the invitation of the Association of Magistrates of the Court.
- May 2013: Speaker at a conference on '*Risanamento dei conti pubblici e vincoli di bilancio - il ruolo della Corte dei Conti*' held at the LUISS University of Rome.
- June 2013: Speaker at the Italian Court of Auditors' conference on '*Controlli congiunti*' (Rome).
- December 2013: representative of the European Court of Auditors at the 23rd OLACEFS (Organisation of Latin American and Caribbean Supreme Audit Institutions) conference in Santiago de Chile, giving a talk on '*El Tribunal de Cuentas Europeo y las Instancias nacionales de Control - Auditorías coordinadas en el contexto de la UE*'.
- June 2014: Presentation of a report on '*Il ruolo della Corte dei Conti Europea nella prevenzione e nel contrasto alle frodi*' at the international 'Hercule II' seminar in Rome.
- 30 September 2014: representative of the European Court of Auditors at a seminar on '*La prevenzione ed il contrasto alle irregolarità ed alle frodi a tutela dell'erario comunitario: profili di armonizzazione e raccordo nell'azione delle Istituzioni superiori di controllo*' held by the Italian Court of Auditors.
- 1 October 2014: Hearing before Committee XIV of the Italian Chamber of Deputies on conducting research into the implementation and efficacy of European Union policies in Italy.
- 23 February 2016: Report on '*La Corte dei conti UE ed i suoi rapporti con la Corte dei conti italiana nel contesto europeo*' as part of a seminar organised by the Department of Political and Social Science of the University of Catania.
- 24 June 2016: Report on '*La Corte dei conti UE ed i suoi rapporti con la Corte dei conti italiana nel contesto europeo*' in the context of a meeting with Senate officials on the auditing of EU funds and audit priorities for 2016.
- 7 July 2017: Keynote lecture at the Pegaso Online University (Naples): '*La Corte dei Conti europea: Profili istituzionali e funzionali*'

PUBLICATIONS

Author of a monograph on general business theory (Rome 1990, published by SIPI Il Sole 24 Ore).

Author of numerous case notes published in legal journals (*Giustizia civile*, 1981; *Giurisprudenza di merito*, 1984 and 1986; *Rivista delle Aziende di credito*, 1985).

Contributor to numerous journals:

Giustizia Civile, author of several articles on civil, commercial and civil procedural law (1978, 1980, 1982, 1983, 1984, 1985, 1988, 1990).

On auditing public finances:

'*La certificazione dei conti pubblici in Italia e in Europa: raffronti comparativi*' in *Rivista della Corte dei Conti* (No 5/2002) and in the proceedings of the conference '*La certificazione dei conti pubblici in Italia e in Europa: Tradizione e Prospettive evolutive*' organised by the Italian Court of Auditors.

'*Le contrôle des dépenses des collectivités décentralisées en Italie*', in the journal *Administration – Revue de l'Association du Corps Préfectoral et des Hauts Fonctionnaires du Ministère de l'Intérieur*, March 2002.

'*Il controllo successivo della Corte dei Conti sulle Amministrazioni dello Stato dopo le riforme degli anni '90: una sistemazione concettuale*', in *Rivista della Corte dei Conti*, No 4/2004.

On EU affairs:

'*La Corte dei Conti italiana dopo la riforma e la Corte dei Conti Europea dopo Maastricht: mutamenti e nuove occasioni di lavoro comune*' in *Rivista della Corte dei Conti*, No 2/1994.

'*La Corte dei Conti – Istituzione comunitaria: note in tema di capacità processuale*' in *Il Foro Amministrativo*, No 6/1994.

'*Il problema del Marchio Frazionato ed il nuovo regime del marchio comunitario*' in *Giustizia Civile*, No 2/1995.

'The administrative liability of the officials of the European Communities. Problems and Prospects' in *The European Union Review*, No 2/1997.

'Controlli, uno sguardo sull'Europa – Evoluzione della certificazione dei conti' in *Italia Oggi*, 18 July 2002.

'El procedimiento de ratificación del Tratado de Lisboa: situación actual' in *Legal Today.com* (online journal in Spanish), 2008.

'Codice operativo del TUE e del TFUE', published by Simone, 2012: author of the commentary on the articles of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union (TFEU) concerning the European Court of Auditors.
